RelmR

Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z-NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013

FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000

FEWA Interest income 6 902,366 902,246

FEXE Interest expense 7 (251,411) (250,253)

AR E WA Net interest income 650,955 651,993

EREMR R Net premiums earned 8 434,096 476,956

H A Other income 9 89,345 297,470

ZE PN Operating income 1,174,396 1,426,419

HR(F4), /O 25 Net claims (incurred)/written back 8 (10,144) 8,767

e s Net commission expenses 8 (110,809) (135,890)

RELH Operating expenses 10 (255,627) (235,043)

RITRERTNZE R F Operating profit before impairment 797,816 1,064,253
RORE (%), /B (Charge)/write-back of loan impairment

allowances 13 (906) 3,545

R A& F Profit before taxation 796,910 1,067,798

i Taxation 14(a) (50,937) (85,214)

RE B EF Profit for the year 745,973 982,584

R R F Profit attributable to:

ZAYNEIIi N Equity holders of the Company 745,973 982,404

IR R Non-controlling interests - 180

745,973 982,584

FENOER227 TP E M E R EM B IRET A — o The notes on pages 119 to 227 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
BURER 2 Proposed dividends 16 350,000 1,500,000
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retmElE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2013
FAT
HK$'000
REE G H Profit for the year 745,973 982,584
Hit £ ERE : Other comprehensive income:
HEWEEH 2 XERRN Items that are or may be reclassified
mA : subsequently to profit or loss:
AR BRS¢ Available-for-sale securities:
— RKEJWa (SH]) 2 — net unrealised gains/(losses) 31 178,161 (37,853)
T HERAFEEHEA — fair value changes transferred to
WK income statement on disposal 31 (63,023) (295,593)
— fE4H — amortisation 31 13 34
— FHIn — tax effect 31 (19,595) 54,908
ME RIS Cash flow hedges:
— RAWERHO N FEEZY — fair value changes transferred to
income statement 31 2,852 4,272
— R — tax effect 31 (471) (704)
EHE R REIML S Exchange differences on translation of
#EE’L[R%& foreign operations of a subsidiary - 3,695
HEDENFERTH Release of translation reserve
BB A Rl 3% B /S0 WA & upon disposal of a subsidiary
classified as assets held for sale 31 (13,104) -
AEEHEMEERE Other comprehensive income/(loss)
(T - BRI for the year, net of tax 84,833 (271,241)
AEELERE LI Total comprehensive income
for the year 830,806 711,343
N2 EKE S Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
ZIN/NE] )i & Equity holders of the Company 830,806 710,794
IR SRR Non-controlling interests - 549
830,806 711,343

BB/ TR BNENFZEM SRR —E 5 -

financial statements.

The notes on pages 119 to 227 are an integral part of these consolidated
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RE SRR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

F=2-mE&+=A=t+—-A
as at 31 December 2014

2013
T
HK$'000
B’rE ASSETS
NeEREHRE Cash and short-term funds 17 18,421,490 11,757,533
N Hﬁlﬂ SYNSIEEY Interest and remittance receivables 18 350,851 368,800
FER™ Assets held for sale 19 - 129,767
miénﬁzlﬂ Derivative financial instruments 20 556,962 831,426
RS @%J Loan portfolio, net 21 15,571,649 22,268,397
1L—I:%’<Tx 7" Investment securities:
— At E — available-for-sale 22(a) 5,734,162 3,860,455
— HEERH — held-to-maturity 22(b) 9,168,795 8,560,595
T ERIN -~ e REM A Prepayments, deposits and other assets 24 20,224 18,030
& 7E R 7= Fixed assets 25 35,109 44,085
BRE R Reinsurance assets 28 144,179 180,742
BERE Total assets 50,003,421 48,019,830
iR LIABILITIES
INERRAIESS Interest payable 26 144,044 195,830
NATHRIT « R FF 32 K Accounts payable, accrued expenses
H A 51151 and other liabilities 27 4,799,578 4,612,260
S5H5ERTEERIENR Liabilities directly associated with
assets held for sale 19 - 384
PTESRMTEA Derivative financial instruments 20 1,575,968 785,458
X AR A 5 Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 133,301 144,665
1% JE T 10t fR Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 76,298 57,156
RIS A Insurance liabilities 28 1,112,089 1,294,712
B AITHRSIUESH Debt securities issued 29 33,270,129 31,355,185
7 B A Total liabilities 41,111,407 38,445,650
P EQUITY
W H AR AR Capital and reserves attributable to
MhEE the equity holders:
[N Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
RE = Retained profits 4,720,815 4,548,760
HURAR B Proposed dividends 16 350,000 1,500,000
Rkﬁﬁﬁﬁé Contingency reserve 31 1,437,745 1,213,827
NEEES Fair value reserve 31 386,161 290,605
X fiE R Hedging reserve 31 (2,707) (5,088)
LRES Translation reserve 31 - 13,104
8,892,014 9,561,208
&R FIRBR 2R M A A Non-controlling interests in equity - 12,972
Xz B8] Total equity 8,892,014 9,574,180
RS E =R Total liabilities and equity 50,003,421 48,019,830
EERET-T—AFMNA - +—BHERZE  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 April
7T © 2015.
FBRER Norman T. L. Chan REX Eddie W. M. Yue
BIFEFMNITESE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #7TEFE Executive Director

F119R227 N FiE M T N A M EIRKRN—E85 - The notes on pages 119 to 227 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Wt 854K 05 3=
Statement of Financial Position

F=2-mE&+=A=t+—-A
as at 31 December 2014

"= ASSETS
N kEHES Cash and short-term funds 17 18,420,026 11,755,482
R FI B KSR Interest and remittance receivables 18 341,436 359,404
TESRMTEA Derivative financial instruments 20 556,962 831,426
DIFAE 3 Loan portfolio, net 21 11,033,066 16,942,574
IEHIER Investment securities:
— A EE — available-for-sale 22(a) 5,734,162 3,860,455
— ¥ EZR 5 H — held-to-maturity 22(b) 9,168,795 8,560,595
LRIEWNCIES N Interests in subsidiaries 23 4,377,944 5,294,250
T E I -~ e REM A Prepayments, deposits and other assets 24 19,168 16,808
E R Fixed assets 25 35,109 44,085
BRE R~ Reinsurance assets 28 144,399 181,053
BREEE Total assets 49,831,067 47,846,132
AR LIABILITIES
INERRAIEES Interest payable 26 144,044 195,830
RIATORIRN ~ RS Accounts payable, accrued expenses
H fth £ 5% and other liabilities 27 4,799,400 4,612,728
PTESRMTE Derivative financial instruments 20 1,575,968 785,458
L EAR I R Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 133,099 144,665
156 FE 7 101 47 {5 Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 76,098 56,911
1RB& AR Insurance liabilities 28 1,113,683 1,297,034
B RITRFZIES Debt securities issued 29 33,270,129 31,355,185
Ukl Total liabilities 41,112,421 38,447,811
& EQUITY
W15 A AR AR Capital and reserves attributable to
R - the equity holders:
[N Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
RE &= F Retained profits 4,547,447 4,398,977
HURAR S Proposed dividends 16 350,000 1,500,000
&% & Contingency reserve 31 1,437,745 1,213,827
NEEES Fair value reserve 31 386,161 290,605
SR g & Hedging reserve 31 (2,707) (5,088)
&3l Total equity 8,718,646 9,398,321
B ST E IR Total liabilities and equity 49,831,067 47,846,132

FEERET-_S—REMNA_+—HLERZN  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 April
Flf7 - 2015.

Eddie W. M. Yue
Executive Director

Norman T. L. Chan RIEX
Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #7T7& %

BER
HIEERNTTEE

FUOE227 A& NRAMEIREFA—E65 o The notes on pages 119 to 227 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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RE@m BT
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2014

R AR RL &
Attributable to equity holders
REHRRR
A& REBER* A Non-
Share Retained Other controlling fox |
capital profits* reserves interests Total
FEL THL T FEL FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E-=F—-B—H4t Balance as at 1 January 2013 2,000,000 6,052,410 1,548,004 12,423 9,612,837
KEERF Profit for the year - 982,404 - 180 982,584
Hthe Al Other comprehensive income:
At ET Available-for-sale securities 31 - - (278,504) - (278,504)
b aRal Cash flow hedges 31 - - 3,568 - 3,568
hEMEATEMNISE  Exchange differences on translation of
FEERLLER foreign operations of a subsidiary 31 - - 3,326 369 3,695
FEELERG Total comprehensive income for the year - 982,404 (271,610) 549 711,383

BREEFE A S HEIME  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
RIS 50% 34 75% premium earned from retained

ENRHEE profits to contingency reserve 31 - (259,009) 259,008 - -

mRRESEEZREEF  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 - 22,954 (22,954) - -

BfZE——£RE Dividend paid related to 2012 - (750,000) - - (750,000)
F-2-=f Balance as at 31 December 2013

+ZA=1t-R4%% 2,000,000 6,048,760 1,512,448 12,972 9,574,180
FEE T Profit for the year - 745973 - - 745973
Hip s Other comprehensive income:
BIEST Available-for-sale securities 31 = - 95,556 - 95,556
b Dahal Cash flow hedges 31 - - 2,381 - 2,381
HENRNFERTH Release of translation reserve on

ME AR EA disposal of a subsidiary classified as

LR assets held for sale - - (13,104) - (13,104)
AFELANREEA Total comprehensive income for the year - 745973 84,833 = 830,806

BRI AR RN Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
{RE% 554 50% 5, 75% premium eamed from retained

ENEHES profits to contingency reserve 31 - (242,407) 242407 - -
HNBESHREEREET]  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 - 18,439 (18,489) - -
HENENGFERTH Derecognition of non-controlling
NG ES IR interests on disposal of a subsidiary
SRR classified as assets held for sale - - - (12972) (12,972)
BRZE-=FRE Dividends paid related to 2013 - (1,500,000) - - (1,500,000)
F-g-m% Balance as at 31 December 2014
+ZA=t-A4H% 2,000,000 5,070,815 1,821,199 - 8,892,014
* F_ZT-—WE+_A=+—8 SMREHEFMFR * As at 31 December 2014, HK$350 million was earmarked as proposed ordinary
WISUATENNRLBRE - FT=F—=F+= dividend from retained profits. As at 31 December 2013, HK$500 million and HK$1
A=+—R ' BEMREBEHF X527 R 1042 billion were earmarked as proposed ordinary and special dividends respectively from
BT D AIERBUREBAR S KRR S retained profits.
FI19E227 T FT kB E N EM S IREZM—F 5 The notes on pages 119 to 227 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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RENERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2014

ZELSHEAERE

Cash flows from operating activities

ZE%m A Operating profit 796,910 1,067,798
FA T ZIMEL AAEE Adjustment for:
F B A Interest income (910,774) (912,339)
FEXZE Interest expense 176,655 217,521
A% B U A Dividend income 9 (34,512) (89,077)
bill=! Depreciation 10 24,841 17,763
B AITRSUESITIE P Amortisation of discount on
debt securities issued 74,756 32,732
RHOREK %/ (Eik) Charge/(write-back) of loan impairment
allowances 13 906 (3,545)
At B ENF SRR R Amortisation of unrealised loss on
RIS T available-for-sale securities
AT 15 7 4 transferred to held-to-maturity
securities 31 13 34
AR RN PE4E Amortisation of premium on
investment securities 8,395 10,059
HER RS Gains on disposal of investments 12 (58,632) (135,737)
HEDENFERTH Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
NG classified as assets held for sale 19 (12,991) —
SMIAERNTFEEY Change in fair value of
financial instruments 2,268 (2,615)
& T HE N TFEERD) Fair value changes of cash flow hedge
AW TR transferred to income statement 31 2,852 4,272
BUF B Interest received 940,255 990,708
BAHFE Interest paid (228,441) (257,447)
ﬂifré%;”ﬁ# R REDH Cash flows from operating activities before
ZXELSHEASRE changes in operating assets and liabilities 782,501 940,127
REEAMBII="AFEIEH  Change in time deposits with original
TEHTF KA 5 maturity of more than three months (69,270) (1,426,893)
N UCCFREE 30 Change in remittance receivables (11,532) 21,720
AT RO ~ e R EA R T Change in prepayments, deposits and
)| other assets (3,416) 608
RHEEE Change in loan portfolio 6,695,842 3,630,547
RATORIN ~ R4 FF 2 & Change in accounts payable,
=R Rl )| accrued expenses and other liabilities 179,871 147,709
RIS AR AT Change in insurance liabilities, net (146,060) (209,886)
SNTSC R ZE AR Exchange differences 71,313 61,129)
KXEMBIE Cash generated from operation 7,499,249 3,042,803
2RI Taxation paid (62,003) (41,257)
ZXEVEHMFIE 2 Net cash generated from
operating activities 7,437,246 3,001,546

EBRBIIFERLAT —T-—nmFEsER 117



ZEedleRER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2013
THAT

HK$'000

BRREHBANERE cash flows from investing activities
V3 & & & 5= Purchase of fixed assets (8,757) (32,720)
W) 35 a] 44 B IE S5 Purchase of available-for-sale securities 22(a) (6,034,625) (5,277,911)
TEFEA 2 HIIE 5 Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 22(b) (2,624,340) (2,054,866)
& KR [ A i H S E 5 Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FT1S 50m available-for-sale securities 4,324,683 7,046,328
T Bl A £ EHIE S Proceeds from redemption of
45 3K held-to-maturity securities 22(0) 1,973,405 2,761,350
HESENFERTH Disposal of a subsidiary classified as
MEAR - MBREI S assets held for sale, net of cash
RERNSIE and cash equivalents disposed of 19 (12,705) -
BYAT B IEAAR B Dividend received from
available-for-sale securities 34,512 111,262
WaES (A, e Net cash (used in)/generated
&2 from investing activities (2,347,827) 2,553,443
il %% B I & 5 AR A Net cash inflows before financing 5,089,419 5,554,989
RRSESFTBISRE cash flows from financing activities
KATHRSFUE S TS 3 Proceeds from issue of debt securities 29 30,401,011 18,127,508
LB A1 THRFBIESE Redemption of debt securities issued 29 (27,524,884) (21,984,670)
B AITIRIBIEHIE K Repayment of mortgage-backed
securities issued - (214,672)
BAR% A Dividends paid 16 (1,500,000) (750,000)
BREDE(FTA) Net cash generated from/(used in)
e 2 financing activities 1,376,127 (4,821,834)
NERERINELIE E N Net increase in cash and
B E cash equivalents 6,465,546 733,155
FPNERERIN LB Beginning cash and cash equivalents 1,948,567 1,204,129
LENINERERA ST E Effect of exchange rates on
1 cash and cash equivalents (201) 11,283
FARYSRERY ST B Ending cash and cash equivalents 8,413,912 1,948,567
BREEVSIRRROI S & Included in cash and cash equivalents of
ZRILIE the statement of financial position 17 8,413,912 1,819,225
BEEHERNMIZERE Included in the assets of the BHKMC
B R IBRA R AR MR disposal group 19(a) - 129,342
FLRY & RERIESIE Ending cash and cash equivalents 8,413,912 1,948,567

FUOE227 TR E M E NE A MBIREKA—EBS ©

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BERBIEFERAR([RDH ) REMH

BB (S [AREA])NEEMSRE

TIRBBEBT IR WA EEM S

wEEN (BEAEERNDAEEM SR

AN - BEIDENRIERE) REBRIA
A RMEHLE m bl -

R AMESMRIZALKABRIIRmE - FF
BB AR FE S MR E AT B EAE R R
ERAFRERAG(BEITEERTR)
ME[ELIFE -

RIBEBCARIRA) (F622F)FE 95 [k
B REIT] W EEAMREZENE (RT
EB(RBIEND) (F6RE)HR1ET6E
87%)  AMBFERELREENLZEAE
%%&i% ERFEIKARZHDEITFEB(A
A1 5B (55622 F) A58 B HART e A R
CARIZPINEE 2 E) ) FTERRHE R

B RITHRR SN - 4 il i 45 & T 55 TR 3R P R
AREZ2UBERRITEITNESAEZR
T EFEMNAR R —2 -

REITTE B AN SIREENEI S IREA -
MEAETER2ITEHE  MEEZENA
NEHF ST R IR B ITIE L #Ik - &
ZRZHAMKNRE KB « SHRIE K&
ITHEREMSIEREEZRTE - B LK
AR o

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a
collective term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASS) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of available-for-sale investment securities, financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
carried at fair value.

In accordance with the transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
“Accounts and Audit” as set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule
11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the applicable requirements of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32) as in force from time to time before the
commencement date of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) for this financial year and the comparative period.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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mEMEIRERME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

FESIHER 2. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 RAFEMSZIREEN 2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs
(@ T-ZT—HTHF—BF—HEEX (@ New standards, amendments and interpretation
HFTAEN - BT R12R% effective on 1 January 2014
THIEEM & HREENBIT R The following amendments to HKFRSs and
BEBT-_Z—NFELAW HF5 interpretation effective in 2014 are relevant to the
REFMEK : Group:
BERELITENEIR2S (12 e Amendments to HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:

TR)[eRMIA: ©f
R R B BT A
251 ERHEHERF
AR BUR T RKEM
MNAAERSNFHIE
BlsEES  ARE
BY - RNEANRESH
B BB T IR BE O
AT o L BUEAT I AN &
H&BERE M -

BRI ENEEISS (& 0
TR)[TETAENER

Fapmaitayies: | - 12
HEMEETRET
HWEE AN B THEK
PTETAB R & IEX

HaItEE R o I
TNAEEREEAY

I o
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Presentation on Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” clarify that the right of set-off
must not be contingent on a future event. It must
also be legally enforceable for all counterparties
in the normal course of business, as well as in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy.
The amendments have no material impact on the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 39 “Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting” provide
relief from discontinuing hedge accounting
when novation of a derivative designated as a
hedging instrument meets certain criteria. The
amendments have no material impact on the
Group.
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oK ERE - WEREWM SR
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FIA R B RE I ERF I
A RE MK+ T2 &2 M AY B
DINREEMBZIRENES KX
HIFTHRR o

B 9045 1B 14 R 248 R 3 8 U &
8T

aHTHAENRENEITT %
—mE-A-BENFERA
TR AR - MHRERBIZE
W&z FTRA - BT T 5
PR S - ELORE9 36 N R AEAT
T2 NAREAZZEMS
WMERFEEANZM :

. HK(IFRIC) 21 “Levies” sets out the accounting
for an obligation to pay a levy if that liability is
within the scope of HKAS 37 “Provision”. The
interpretation addresses what the obligating
event is that gives rise to the payment of a levy
and when a liability should be recognised. The
Group is not currently subjected to significant
levies so the impact on the Group is not material.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation as from the Company’s
first financial year commencing on or after 3 March
2014 in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of expected impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements
in the period of initial application of Part 9 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and only the presentation and the disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements
will be affected.

New standards and amendments issued but not yet
effective

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2014, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:
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mEMSEIRERME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities. The
complete version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July
2014. It replaces the guidance in HKAS 39 that
relates to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but
simplifies the mixed measurement mode
and establishes three primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income and fair value through profit or loss. The
basis of classification depends on the entity’s
business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments
in equity instruments are required to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss with
the irrevocable option at inception to present
changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income without the possibility to recycle these
results to the income statement. There is now a
new expected credit losses model that replaces
the incurred loss impairment model used in HKAS
39. For financial liabilities there were no changes
to classification and measurement except for the
recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss. HKFRS 9
relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness
by replacing the bright line hedge effectiveness
tests. It requires an economic relationship
between the hedged item and hedging
instrument and the hedged ratio to be the same
as the one management actually use for risk
management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is different to
that currently prepared under HKAS 39.
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The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early
adoption is permitted. The Group is considering
the implications of the standard.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from an
entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is
recognised when a customer obtains control of a
good or service and thus has the ability to direct
the use and obtain the benefits from the good or
service.

HKFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue
standards: HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts”, and the related
interpretations. The standard is applicable to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017 with early adoption permitted. The Group is
considering the implications of the standard.
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“Annual Improvements to HKFRSsS 2010-2012
Cycle” includes changes to HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”,
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, HKAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment”, HKAS 24
"Related Party Disclosures” and HKAS 38
“Intangible Assets”. The amendments largely
apply to annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014. The Group is considering the
implications of the standard.

“Annual Improvements to HKFRSS 2011-2013
Cycle” includes changes to HKFRS 1 “First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards”, HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”,
HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” and HKAS
40 “Investment Property”. The amendments
largely apply to annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014. The Group is considering the
implications of the standard.

FHRA E A W RAERH B
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There are no other HKFRSs that are not yet effective
that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.
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2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2014.

@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities used for issuing mortgage-backed securities,
namely HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited and
Bauhinia MBS Limited) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the
net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company. They are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
separately from equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of
the net profit for the period between non-controlling
interests and equity holders of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interests
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or l0ss.
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In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less
provision for impairment allowances. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

(b)y Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests without change of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
the non-controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.3. Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment 10ss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

126 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2014



2.4

2.5

H W (Bt 2.22 B ik R R BE
S51#E{ERE LM ERMRI)

@ BARAZEA

FERARASBE TRHERS
VAR I+ EETRIA o B T SERR A
KT 53 B — &P B0 AT A & HE
F L TAE R EE TERA B W
ASEERF R B R IA o

b) REBA
BB WA FREHRIRRSAXF
RN o

ERLEE~

AEFABERA=HN  WATEE

LI RSO SBA © SRR

I HAEZIHNRAERAEEE
R o DRAANFMAERA~H
BEVMIE ° EIRE TR AR RE
ERRFEDE o

@ MUATEZALIAREHESR
#P

SRR Ay R - B EX
SEMERART R TR LN
BEAARFEEZA T AL
MNERMA”T - WERMBTEE
NERHRNEEMWA - ki
RENEAEEN]IRS S E
TAREZ B RBIUED
7~ B 8 SRR S BRER A - U3
KNBFEEZAE - REETE
EXI AR A®RIN  BNPTET A
INAK NIFEER AR -

2.4. Other income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.22

2.5.

@)

Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on
an accrual basis when the service has been provided.
Upfront arrangement fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate are recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate in determining
interest income on the loans.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and
available-for-sale investments. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading, and those designated as at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term or if it is part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence
of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges.
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A financial asset is typically classified as fair value
through profit or loss at inception if it meets the
following criteria:

(i)  the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or financial
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on
which information about the financial assets and/
or financial liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel.

(i) financial assets, such as debt securities held,
containing one or more embedded derivatives
which significantly modify the cash flows, can be
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and for which the
Group has no intention of trading immediately or in the
short term.
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Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Where the Group sold or reclassified held-to-maturity
assets (i) other than due to an isolated event that is
beyond the Group’s control, is non-recurring and could
not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group,
such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness or (i) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category
would be reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories.
Available-for-sale investments are those intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rate, exchange rate or market prices. They are
initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently
held at fair value.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the income statement.
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Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (fair
value reserve), until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in equity is reclassified
to income statement. However, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income
statement when the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.

If an asset measured at fair value has a bid price and
an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is
most representative of fair value in the circumstances
shall be used to measure fair value. If there is no active
market for a financial asset, the Group establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
technigues commonly used by market participants.

FAE o
MEAEHBEHBENERTEN The Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that
DR FERLESRASFEZAM would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the
WEARKSIEZEIER - AREH R BA available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention
EEB A R R R R IUE LR © and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable
BT - MR SR REREF 5 future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.
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2.6.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value
gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial
assets reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity categories are determined at the reclassification
date.

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
assets is impaired includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about the following loss
events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor,

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

. the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, a concession that the Group
would not otherwise consider;

. initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other
financial reorganisation,

. the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
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. observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant. For exposures which
are not individually significant, the Group will assess
impairment either individually or collectively. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment 0ss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract.

132 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2014



T RBRWERAR - X
RMERA ST RRAELR
BZIETE  AIRBREKED
IR @ E MR EUS R H & R
mnZ RANAIREF- RIS RE ©

Bz HAEREFENS @ £
BA - EAEEERRERUA
K ZERBETINZER~
HAZARINSREFR 7
ERFHER~ERNFRT
HRSANBEB RIS

4k,
Be °©

—HARBTREFENESH
RFENARINERE - ZREF
HARFHNENINTRE - R
SHANREERNRE-NR
FZSESRIERAEEM
E - JESHRIEF2RENN
AT BE T LA - AR BR
HRB NI ERLR PTEKIEEZ
H[a) = £ 20 B I A IR Y 52
W - A ROERR T3 B A H I
B HADFEZ R MR

it —ARFARIASREN
AL B AT 21 I AR 4 1A 1) 9 AR S AT
MEHE(ERZER~TIR
ZAIREEMZE WA S)) - FHiB
EESHE - - AEHEHR
Wt ARKIASREN T ER
fRi% - LAZER S BA 1T 53K6R
SIREVEL ©

R RITERE - WERE R
B BIEREBRREFRE
TR E MR - 1ZFRHK
BTk B BHRERFREE
SREFUEME o i Bk E
PATE B A RO 30 - B A TR
KRR T 2 BETHR

The calculation of the present value of estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether
or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of
impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit risk characteristics which are relevant
to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of
such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in
the group and historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups
of assets should reflect and be directionally consistent
with changes in related observable data from period
to period which are indicative of changes in the
probability of losses in the group and their magnitude.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against
the related allowance for loan impairment at the
discretion of the Credit Committee. Such loans
are written off after all the necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decrease the amount
of the allowance for loan impairment in the income
Statement.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an available-
for-sale investment or a group of available-for-sale
investments is impaired. For debt securities, the Group
uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case
of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
income statement — is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of the instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in income statement,
the impairment loss to the extent of such change is
reversed through the income statement.

Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms
have been renegotiated are treated as renegotiated
loans.
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2.7. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at
inception and recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes issued under the Debt Issuance Programme
(DIP), (i) notes offered to retail investors through the placing
banks in standalone retail bond issues and under the Retail
Bond Issuance Programme (RBIP) and (iii) notes issued
under the Medium Term Note (MTN) Programme. The
mortgage-backed securities (MBS) issued by a structured
entity through the US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-backed
Securitisation Programme are recorded as mortgage-backed
securities issued in the financial statements on consolidation
of the structured entities.

These notes (including MBS) are initially designated as either
(i) financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (ii)
other financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. Those
notes which are designated as hedged items under a fair
value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes subject
to the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the
consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.
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2.8.

2.9.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investments are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and
receivables are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
debt securities issued are recognised on the trade date.
Other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise.
Financial liabilities are derecognised from the statement
of financial position when and only when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
is negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.
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The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain
or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as
either: (i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or firm commitments (“fair value hedge”); or, (i)
hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable to a
recognised asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (“cash
flow hedge"”). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives
designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

(b)y Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the

income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.
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When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument are recognised immediately in the income
statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.11.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
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2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

Income directly associated with each segment is included
in determining segment performance. Funding costs are
allocated to each segment by way of internal fund transfer
pricing mechanisms. Cost allocation is based on the direct
costs incurred by the respective segment and apportionment
of management overheads.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

(@ Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale, a distinction is made between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount, except impairment, are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position,
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. Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions),

o All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income;

. Exchange differences arising from the above
process are reported in shareholders’ equity as
translation reserve; and

o On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, and of borrowings and
other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to
other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is disposed of, or partially disposed of,
such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation

On disposal of foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are taken to the income statement.

2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their

estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements  over the unexpired period of the lease

Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease
Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
Statement.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company's
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.16.Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which
are charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income, is also credited or charged directly to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement together with the deferred gain or
loss.
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2.17.Employee benefits

@)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
ocCcurs.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.

2.18.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation.
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2.19.Leases

@)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. The Group entered into
operating leases primarily as lessee. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the
lease period has expired, any payment required to be
made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as
an expense in the period in which termination takes
place.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. The Group entered into finance leases
primarily as lessor. Finance leases are capitalised as
receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of a
finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as
finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.6.
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2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

2.21.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, including
cash and balances with banks that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.22(b).

2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@) Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme of the Group is accounted for
on the annual accounting basis. Under the annual
accounting approach, the Group makes provisions
based on credible estimates of future income and
outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result
includes any adjustments arising from the correction of
the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts, include the reinsurance premiums to be
paid to the approved reinsurers, the risk premiums and
servicing fees earned by the Group. The net premiums
are recognised as income on a time-apportioned basis
during the time the insurance coverage is effective.
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Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to risks
and services subsequent to the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside
as a Contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for 10sses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which
the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts
held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers
and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are
primarily premiums for reinsurance contracts and are
recognised as an expense.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.
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(b) Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium-sized
enterprises (SMES) and non-listed enterprises, in
return for a guarantee fee, and insurance coverage on
reverse mortgage provided to elderly people, in return
for an insurance premium.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are
adeqguate on each reporting date, using the current
estimates of future cash flows under these contracts.
If the assessment shows that the carrying amount of
its guarantee and insurance liabilities are inadequate
in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside
as a contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

2.23.Dividend distribution

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each
reporting period is disclosed as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity and as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by shareholders.

2.24.Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable.
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3.

Financial risk management

S

Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; (i) to provide
mortgage insurance cover to Als in respect of mortgage
loans originated by such Als and secured on residential
properties in Hong Kong; (iv) to provide financial guarantee
cover to Als in respect of loans originated by such Als to
SMEs and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong; (v) to provide
insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by such Als to elderly people; and (vi) to operate
a centralised microfinance platform to support microfinance
loans. By their nature, the Group's activities are principally
related to the use of financial instruments including cash,
loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
corporate level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees,
including the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
committee (ALCO), Transaction Approval Committee (TAC)
and Operational Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the
Corporate Risk Management Committee.
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3.2.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and
standards for asset acquisition and mortgage insurance.
The ALCO oversees the implementation of market risk
management and investment guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors. The TAC conducts an in-depth analysis
of pricing economics and associated risks for business
transactions, whilst taking into consideration the latest
market conditions and business strategies approved by
the Board. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all
business entities and line functions maintain an effective
operational risk and internal control framework. The ORC is
also responsible for providing directions and resolving issues
related to policies, controls and management of operational
issues referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring
prompt and appropriate corrective action in response to
audit findings related to operational risks or internal controls.
In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent
review of risk management and the control environment.
The most important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk which includes currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit
risk on liguid funds and investment securities is limited
because the credit ratings of the counterparties, mainly
sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies,
should meet the minimum requirement in accordance
with the investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. Allowance for impairment
is provided for losses that have been incurred at the end of
the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property
market could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the end of the reporting period. The Group
therefore has a prudent policy for managing its exposure to
credit risk.
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To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance
portfolios, the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to
(i) select Approved Sellers with established criteria, (i) adopt
prudent asset purchasing criteria and insurance underwriting
eligibility criteria, (iii) conduct effective due diligence reviews
and (iv) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions.

Credit risk exposures on mortgage loans of the Group
are spread over a large number of customers and
counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the Group’s
mortgage exposures are located in Hong Kong and Korea.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties and the deferred consideration (Note
27). For finance lease receivable, the collateral types
include taxi and public light bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable are generally fully secured
by collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio
basis. For other non-mortgage portfolio, no collateral is
generally sought.
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Time deposits with banks and investment securities

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short term maturity.
Investment securities are generally unsecured, with the
exception of asset-backed securities which are secured by
properties or other assets.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement with all counterparties for
derivative transactions where each party will be able to
settle all outstanding amounts on a net basis in the event of
default of the other party. Since 2014, the Group executed
a Credit Support Annex (CSA) with one of its counterparties
in conjunction with the master agreement. Under a CSA,
collateral is passed between the parties to mitigate the
counterparty risk inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits are
subject to regular review by the Credit Committee on a
semi-annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group's market transactions on any single day.
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Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
account of collateral held or other credit enhancements
are analysed as follows:

AEAMRRERE~RaE The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
DN SHKESIASE - & assets of the Group and the Company are equal to

FRERIMNBESETRRGE D
HaE :

their carrying amounts. The maximum exposures
to credit risk of off-balance sheet exposures are as

follows:

KEH N

The Group
F-2-m#%
+=ZA=+-H

The Company
F-E2-mE F=F-=F%
+=A=t-H +=RA=1+—H
As at As at As at
31December  31December 31December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
TER AT TER THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI Total risk-in-force
— RIBRE L F — mortgage insurance
business 13,117,846 14,453,649 13,469,758 15,026,481
—HtERK — other guarantee and
R % insurance business 2,094,200 1,625,083 2,094,200 1,625,083
15,212,046 16,078,732 15,563,958 16,651,564
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b)) TIHRAEWERREH NN (b)  Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as
T follows:

S i FRH

The Group The Company
F-E2-mg F-FT-=F TF-B-mE TF-T-=F
+=A=+-H tZA=+—H +=A=+-H +=A=+—H

As at As at As at As at

31 December  31December 31 December 31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013

THT THL THT AT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REEIMARE Neither past due nor impaired 15,212,222 21969373 10,750,891 16,687,185
AHERRE Past due but not impaired 358,920 298,671 281,491 255,106
BRfE Impaired 2,241 2,178 1,564 1,578
AR BA Gross loan portfolio 15,573,383 22,270,222 11,033,946 16,943,869
NHORER & Allowance for loan impairment (1,734) (1,825) (880) (1,295)

15,571,649 22,268,397 11,033,066 16,942,574

T2 IREARK BT ARBER The credit quality of loans that were neither past due
RHEEMERRE  AI8E nor impaired as at the end of the reporting period can
INER AR HI N HAT R R G be assessed by reference to the internal rating system
1T o adopted by the Group.
KEH N
The Group The Company
T-2-mE T—= T=2-mg TF-ZT-=F
TEEETr=[E +=RA=t—H +ZA=t—H
As at As at As at
31December  31December 31December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
TET TR TET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Rl - Grades:
1234 1103 15,191,051 21,950,123 10,731,556 16,673,649
4 4 - 383 - 383
5% 5 21,171 18,867 19,335 13,153

15,212,222 21,969,373 10,750,891 16,687,185
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Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or
no recent past due history; and with different levels of
credit enhancements in addition to the collateral held
as security for mortgage portfolio and finance lease
receivable.

Grade 4 includes loans with recent past due history
and with different levels of credit enhancement in
addition to the collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Grade 5 includes loans with recent past due history
and with collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Loans past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans
that were past due but not impaired at the end of the
reporting period:

AREH VN
The Group The Company
Fo-E-mE F-F-—= F-E—=
+=A=t-H t=ZA=1+—H +=A=+—-H
As at As at As at As at
31December  31December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
THT THET TER THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Past due:
=NAFAT Three months or less 358,190 296,306 280,761 252,741
AMNASAT Six months or less but
E#EI=1H over three months 58 369 58 369
AN A Over six months 672 1,996 672 1,996
B Total 358,920 298,671 281,491 255,106
Hef A m Rk Of which fair value of
HAfEhrRH collateral and other credit
IR FEHEM AT A enhancement 2,583,822 2,156,076 2,382,343 2,051,600
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Individually impaired loans

Individually impaired loans of the Group and the
Company before taking into account the cash flows
from collateral held amounted to HK$2,241,000 (2013:
HK$2,178,000) and HK$1,564,000 (2013: HK$1,578,000)
respectively.

The fair value of related collateral held of the Group
and the Company for individually impaired loans
amounted to HK$5,061,000 (2013: HK$4,399,000).

Repossessed properties

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness and are classified in the
statement of financial position within “Other assets”. If
excess funds arise after repayment of the outstanding
indebtedness, they are distributed to the beneficiaries
of the assets under the applicable laws.

Cash and short-term funds

According to the investment guidelines approved
by the Board of Directors, the Group can only place
deposits with note-issuing banks or banks with a
certain minimum credit rating. As at 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013, the minimum acceptable
short-term credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor’s),
P-2 (Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch).
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Investment securities

According to the investment guidelines approved by
the Board of Directors, the Group can only invest in
debt securities with a certain minimum credit rating.
The proportion of investments according to rating
categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating designation as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
(Standard and Poor’s, Moody's and Fitch). In the
absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
issuers are reported.

A EITE S BEZHHIES
ERARAAT Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity Jk i
F-2-mE+=A=+-AH securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FExT TEx TEx
As at 31 December 2014 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/AGa AAA/Aaa 500,000 1,205,035 1,705,035
AA- 2 AA+ /A33 £ AaT AA-t0 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 3,051,831 6,348,593 9,400,424
A-EA+/A3EA A-10 A+/A310 A1 1,198,242 1,615,167 2,813,409
foki Total 4,750,073 9,168,795 13,918,868

A EIES FEZIEEA
REHARAAE Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity B
F-F—=%+ZA=1—H securities securities Total
The Group and the Company AR THET TABT
As at 31 December 2013 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA /Aaa AAA/AGa 384,003 2,159,071 2,543,074
AA- 2 AA+ /A33 £ AaT AA- 10 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 2,015,252 4,984,285 6,999,537
A- EA+H/A3EAT A-10 A+/A310 A1 542,650 1,417,239 1,959,889
B Total 2,941,905 8,560,595 11,502,500
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group's exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued and the
overseas residential mortgage loans by the use of cross-
currency swaps as fair value hedges and economic hedges
respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income
under different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the
negative impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis
points parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at
31 December 2014 would increase the future net interest
income for the next 12 months by around HK$1 million (2013:
decrease by less than HK$1 million) and decrease by around
HK$1 million (2013: increase by less than HK$1 million) for a
similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2014, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been higher by less than HK$0.1
million (2013: HK$1 million) and the fair value reserve would
have been higher by around HK$7 million (2013: HK$5 million)
as at 31 December 2014. If interest rates had experienced
a 20 basis points parallel shift upwards, profit for the year
would have been lower by less than HK$0.1 million (2013:
HK$1 million) and the fair value reserve would have been
lower by around HK$7 million (2013: HK$6 million).

As at 31 December 2014, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$15 million higher (2013:
HK$11 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$15
million lower (2013: HK$11 million).

As at 31 December 2014, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than
US dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$9
million higher (2013: HK$18 million). Conversely, if the Hong
Kong dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points
against foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for
the year would have been around HK$9 million lower (2013:
HK$18 million).

EERBISARAT —=—maEFf 159



mEMSEIRERME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FToE—ME+=A=+—H8 " &AM
BEHMAEERARRETENERLT
WRZBAERESMEH RIS
ESHNMBTERI%  QAFEERZE
B N100F B T(ZFE—=4F:
900 FABTL) e R ' (MR SFTRIEE
SMEH =R EEESONE EF
1% N FEE R HF L I1£91,000 J7 75
TT(ZFE—=F : 9003 87T) °

EASTRREERENFE  CEX
KM E+ = AR A IE R
FTIEH IS -

(@) MK

ARERHRIITINT 70 FK
HXEM SRR LI REN
FMmAENE - EFRHIE
FI/EVER TR B B9 RSN ©
RIEMRERER R 2IRE A A
EONMAR R - e R
TR - ERVA T HE - A HIfR
FRITUMUTZ MM
R BRUEAEHARTREESR
T ARM - T R
BT MThAERFEE
BEME G o FAED A H6R
FHRATIH R RITHSNT B -
B2 EI P RETHAET

As at 31 December 2014, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trust had decreased by 1%, the fair value
reserve would have been around HK$10 million lower (2013:
HK$9 million). Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded
funds and real estate investment trust had increased by 1%,
the fair value reserve would have been around HK$10 million
higher (2013: HK$S million).

The increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

(@  Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars, British
pounds, Australian dollars, euro and Japanese yen.
All foreign currency-denominated MTN debts are fully
hedged into either US dollars or Hong Kong dollars.
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The Group
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The tables below summarise the Group's exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

Hitr5ph
Other foreign BE
currencies Total
S FHER
HK$'000 HK$'000

BT xR
HKD usD
TERL TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

BIMITEERTA(ZER

BURR AN SR ] T 5%

L)

f) BB LIS E N FER

ZEH# ©

* BHEERZE TR
S5 ~ AB{ZETTENR TS
5 RA7{Z28 T AR M it

FiESH o

B Assets
NekEER % Cash and short-term funds 14,194,978 4,225,761 751 18,421,490
UM 8 B3R Interest and remittance receivables 226,300 65,397 59,154 350,851
fTELRIA Derivative financial instruments 556,962 - - 556,962
RRAR AT Loan portfolio, net 14,876,420 695,229 - 15,571,649
EARR : Investment securities;

—AftnE — available-for-sale 3,285,364 2,264,151 184,647 5,734,162

e EE — held-to-maturity 3,534,737 4,779,118 854,940 9,168,795
MM ZER Prepayments, deposits and

Hip R = other assets 20,123 101 - 20,224
Ehve Fixed assets 35,109 - - 35,109
BRI R Reinsurance assets 144,179 - - 144,179
REBE Total assets 36,874,172 12,029,757 1,099,492 50,003,421
il Liabilities
gt Interest payable 96,275 7,447 40,322 144,044
RIRTEIR » MATFF S R Accounts payable, accrued

i b7 expenses and other liabilities 4,751,861 47,117 - 4,799,578
ITESHTA Derivative financial instruments 1,575,968 - - 1,575,968
LI R Current income tax liabilities 133,301 - - 133,301
BIEHMA R Deferred income tax liabilities 76,298 - - 76,298
R fufi Insurance liahilities 1,112,089 - - 1,112,089
BRTfRSITES Debt securities issued 16,273,562 4,221,469 12,775,098+ 33,270,129
fREH Total liabilities 24,019,354 4,276,633 12,815,420 41,111,407
R Net position 12,854,818 7,753,124 (11,715,928) 8,892,014
AERERINEG UL Off-balance sheet net notional

position® (17,838,990) 3,523,133 12,702,881 (1,612,976)
# [BERERINERLFEC] # "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the

difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

i Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of

HK$4.8 billion, Australian dollars of HK$4.8 billion and renminbi
of HK$1.7 billion.
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Hih
Other foreign BH
currencies Total
TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

BT e
HKD UsD
TR TRR
HK$'000 HK$'000

NG
The Company

F-Z-mE+-A=1-H Asat31December 2014

B Assets
NeREEre Cash and short-term funds 14,193,514 4,225,761 751 18,420,026
R B ROCR Interest and remittance receivables 216,885 65,397 59,154 341,436
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments 556,962 - - 556,962
RRAR BT Loan portfolio, net 10,337,837 695,229 - 11,033,066
AR Investment securities:
— e — available-for-sale 3,285,364 2,264,151 184,647 5,734,162
—RBEHH — held-to-maturity 3,534,737 4,779,118 854,940 9,168,795
LIEVNGESA Interests in subsidiaries 4,377,944 - - 4,377,944
AFR - BE R Prepayments, deposits and
Hip R 7= other assets 19,067 101 - 19,168
B R Fixed assets 35,109 - - 35,109
BRI Reinsurance assets 144,399 - - 144,399
AREBE Total assets 36,701,818 12,029,757 1,099,492 49,831,067
ik Liabilities
NS Interest payable 96,275 7.447 40,322 144,044
RIFHETR « NATFF R Accounts payable, accrued
Hitr 51 67 expenses and other liabilities 4,751,683 47,117 - 4,799,400
TESBIE Derivative financial instruments 1,575,968 - - 1,575,968
LERIA R Currentincome tax liabilities 133,099 - - 133,099
BRI R Deferred income tax liabilities 76,098 - - 76,098
RIS Insurance liabilities 1,113,683 - - 1,113,683
B RIS Debt securities issued 16,273,562 4,221,469 12,775,098+ 33,270,129
RS Total liabilities 24,020,368 4,276,633 12,815,420 41,112,421
HO2H Net position 12,681,450 7,753,124 (11,715,928) 8,718,646
REffRINESG WEe  Off-balance sheet net notional
position® (17,838,990) 3,523,133 12,702,881 (1,612,976)
5 [RFEARERINER LFEO] # "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
EmiTESRIA(EEZA difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
BUBE A A B F 8 TR s A X derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
R)NEBLEMEE A FED reduce the Company’s exposure to currency movements and
EH o their fair values.
& BB IR TR R % Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
FiEF ~ 4812 TTRIR TR S HK$4.8 billion, Australian dollars of HK$4.8 billion and renminbi
E RI7Z B T8 AR R of HK$1.7 billion.
K% o
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AL
HKD
ThET
HKS'000

F-E—=F+-A=+—H Asat31December 2013

e
UsD
TR
HK$'000

H oM
Other foreign
currencies
TEL
HK$'000

BE
Total
THET
HK$'000

RiE Assets
NekEHRE Cash and short-term funds 8,293,174 3,228,038 236,321 11,757,533
R 8 L3R Interest and remittance receivables 215,585 123378 29,837 368,800
HERF Assets held for sale = = 129,767 129,767
fTELRIE Derivative financial instruments 774,360 57,066 - 831,426
RRAR AT Loan portfolio, net 20,012,458 2,255,939 - 22,268,397
FAHRA Investment securities:

— RS — available-for-sale 1,455,678 1,642,268 762,509 3,860,455

e — held-to-maturity 2,934,264 4,419,131 1,207,200 8,560,595
MEFIM - ZE Rk Prepayments, deposits and

iR other assets 17.929 101 - 18,030
R Fixed assets 44,085 = = 44,085
BREAF Reinsurance assets 180,742 - - 180,742
REBE Total assets 33,928,275 11,725,921 2,365,634 48,019,830
ik Liahilities
RS2 Interest payable 106,646 68,277 20,907 195,830
RIFHEIR » NATFF R Accounts payable, accrued

it b7 expenses and other liabilities 4,611,243 1,017 - 4,612,260
SRERAFERAENSMR  Labilities directly associated with

assets held for sale - - 384 384
TESBIE Derivative financial instruments 785,458 - - 785,458
LEHIA R Currentincome tax liabilities 144,665 = - 144,665
B EH A Deferred income tax liabilities 57,156 - - 57,156
RS Insurance liabilities 1294712 - - 1,294,712
BERIIREIEE Debt securities issued 14,205,142 8,485,416 8,664,627* 31,355,185
RS Total liabilities 21,205,022 8,554,710 8,685,918 38,445,650
RO Net position 12,723,253 317121 (6,320,284) 9,574,180
REffkNEE Wse:  Offbalance sheet net notional
position® (14,229,537) 4972917 8,684,920 (571,700)
5 [RFEARERINEELFES] # "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
EINMITESRMTIA(EZER difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency

PARE A S ] T 55 TR s A X
) BB LIS E R FER

derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group's exposure to currency movements and their

ZH © fair values.

o BB IEL0Z 7 TR RS 5 & Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
% IE % K 3512 7 JT #9 S IT i HK$4 billion and Australian dollars of HK$3.5 billion.
FiEF o
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YN
The Company

F-F-—=%+-A=1+—H Asat31December 2013

AL
HKD
ThT
HK$'000

e
UsD
T
HK$'000

X
Qther foreign
currencies
Tix
HK$'000

BE
Total
FATL
HK$'000

R Assets
NeRERRE Cash and short-term funds 8,291,123 3,228,038 236,321 11,755,482
R 8 RL 3R Interest and remittance receivables 206,189 123378 29,837 359,404
TESRBTA Derivative financial instruments 774,360 57,066 - 831,426
g ey £ Loan portfolio, net 14,686,635 2,255,939 - 16,942 574
IR Investment securities:

—AHEE — available-for-sale 1,455,678 1,642,268 762,509 3,860,455

e — held-to-maturity 2,934,264 4,419,131 1,207,200 8,560,595
LIEVNGEEA Interests in subsidiaries 5,192,190 - 102,060 5,294,250
AFR - BE R Prepayments, deposits and

bR other assets 16,707 101 - 16,808
B R = Fixed assets 44,085 - - 44,085
BREAF Reinsurance assets 181,053 - - 181,053
REBE Total assets 33,782,284 11,725,921 2,331,927 47 846,132
fifi Liabilities
RIfSFIE Interest payable 106,646 68,277 20,907 195,830
RIFHETR » NATFF R Accounts payable, accrued

Hitr 57 67 expenses and other liabilities 4611711 1,017 - 4612728
TESBIE Derivative financial instruments 785,458 - - 785,458
LEBIA R Currentincome tax liabilities 144,665 = - 144,665
BRI R Deferred income tax liabilities 56,911 - = 56911
RRAR Insurance liabilities 1,297,034 - - 1,297,034
BERIIREIS Debt securities issued 14,205,142 8,485,416 8,664,627* 31,355,185
RS Total liabilities 21,207 567 8,554,710 8,685,534 38,447 811
RO Net position 12,574,717 3171211 (6,347,607) 9,398,321
REffRINESG WEeF  Off-balance sheet net notional

position® (14,229,537) 4972917 8,684,920 (571,700)

[RF=AFRN SR LT
BIMITEERTA(ZER
VARIRA 22 B F 5 MR s MR
B ) H) R LSS E N FER

ZEH °

BEEEA0ZE T REEfH
S5 IE %5 J 3512 78 7T #Y B TT fit

FiES e

"Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Company’s exposure to currency movements and

their fair values.

Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of

HK$4 billion and Australian dollars of HK$3.5 billion.
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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-MRE  ZABME —FE
=/ E-f Eit3
-l Over Over Over RBENE Fit&
Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over Non-interest ot
1month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years hearing Total
R ThL T Thn THT T THT Thn
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FZE-MET=A=+-F Asat31December 2014
"’ Assets
NeRESHAE Cash and short-term funds 9,113,670 7,239,428 1,543,602 - - 524,790 18,421,490
RS RITR Interest and remitiance receivables - - - - - 350,851 350,851
fTEeBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 556,962 556,962
RRAA#H Loan portfolio, net 14,465,392 1,050,667 19,738 34,286 1,566 - 15,571,649
EHRR - Investment securities:
— e — available-for-sale 1348592 1134068 1072891 1194522 - 984,089 5,734,162
e — held-to-maturity 11,225 250,103 929,463 4,388,264 3,589,740 - 9,168,795
AR 2R Prepayments, deposits and
2R~ offier assets - - - - - 20,224 20,224
BEA~ Fiked assets - - - - - 35,109 35,109
BRRA ReinsLirance assets - - - - - 144,179 144,179
RERfE Total assets 24,938,879 9,674,266 3,565,694 5,617,072 3,591,306 2,616,204 50,003,421
Rl Liabilities
nftFE Interest payahle - - - - - 144,044 144,044
R - SR Accounts payable, accrued
Hosf expenses and other liabilties 4,226,599 - - - - 572979 4,799,578
fEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1575968 1,575,968
EEA Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 133,301 133,301
BREFAR R Deferred income tax liabiities - - - - - 76,298 76,298
REAR Insrance liabilties - - - - - 1,112,089 1,112,089
BRITREIER Debt securities issLied 8,167,682 10,009,674 4,002,428 8040417 3,049,928 - 33210129
AfRES Total liabilities 12,394,281 10,009,674 4,002,428 8,040,417 3,049,928 3,614,679 41,111,407
flEGRERD BE Total interest sensitivity gap* 12,544,598 (335,408) (436,734)  (2,423,345) 541,378
FRfAETE Interest rate derivatives (notional
(BeAsns s amounts of net posttion) (3960,694) (12118732) 3976360 7800506 2,689,584
* RIUTATESRITASELSX o before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
BAITRSIEHFNEM on the debt securities issued.
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-MERE  EAMARE —EHLE
E=/MB E-F 5t
- Over Over Over BENE &

Upto  1monthto 3 months 1year to Over  Non-interest et

1 month 3 months to 1year 5 years 5 years bearing Total

508 Tén TER Tén TEn TR TEn TEn
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-E-MET-B=1-A Asat31December 2014

B Assets
NeRE#Re Cash and short-term funds 9,112,563 7,239,428 1,543,602 - - 524,433 18,420,026
A8 RCE Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 341,436 341,436
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 556,962 556,962
REAL A8 Loan portfolio, net 9,980,202 1,030,754 6,367 14177 1,566 - 11,033,066
IEHRA - Investment sectrities:

—AghE — avallable-for-sale 1,348,592 1,134,068 1,072,891 1,194,522 - 984,089 5,734,162

—HEEIH — held-to-maturity 11,225 250,103 929,463 4388264 3,589,740 - 9,168,795
NG Interests in Subsiclaries 4,344,323 19,271 12,625 725 - 1000 4377944
RFT - 2R Prepayments, deposits and

YN Other assets - - - - - 19,168 19,168
EER" Fixed assets - - - - - 35,109 35,109
BRRAS Reinsurance assets - - - - - 144,399 144,399
REBE Total assets 24,796,905 9,673,624 3,564,948 5,597,688 3,591,306 2,606,596 49,831,067
Rk Liabilities
RHE Interest payable - - - - - 144,044 144,044
R - MR Accounts payable, accrued

Htosfi expenses and other liabiities 4,226,599 - - - - 572,801 4,799,400
fTESHIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,575,968 1,575,968
EL Tl Current income tax iabiltes - - - - - 133,099 133,099
BRERARR Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 76,098 76,098
RIS Insurance liabities - - - - - 1,113,683 1,113,683
BATRS IS DeDt Securities issued 8,167,682 10,009,674 4,002,428 8,040,417 3,049,928 - 33210129
HRER Total liabilities 12,394,281 10,009,674 4,002,428 8,040,417 3,049,928 3,615,693 1,112,421
FERRERDBH Total Interest sensitivity gap* 12,402,624 (336,050) (437,480)  (2,442,729) 541,378
FZfETR Interest rate derivatives (notional

(Boamnaien) amounts of net position) (3,960,694)  (12,118,732) 3,976,360 7,800,506 2,689,584

i RUTATESRITASELSX * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
BAITERSIESFMEM © on the debt securities issued.
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—F)E
2 3k
AR Over Over RENE Fitg
Upto 1 month to 3months Tyearto Over  Non-interest
1month 3months 01 year 5years 5years bearing
TER ThT Tin BT TR T TEn
The Group HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
F-Z-=E+-F=+-H Asat31December 2013
N Assets
NeREHAS Cashand short-term funds 3301620 1,019,067 7,060,241 = = 376605 11757533
RAFE RIR Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 38,800 368800
BERFE Assets held for sale 129,342 - - - - 42 129,767
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 831,426 831426
RAA #4 Loan portfolio, net 18,603,163 3603914 23491 35,994 1835 - 2268,391
R Investment securities:
—WiEHE — available-for-sale 217,074 571,488 121471 938,602 = 918,550 3,860,455
—RFEZIE — held-to-maturity 283205 388,885 1,548,679 2,638,646 3,701,180 - 8,560,595
B0 ke R Prepayments, deposits and
e other assets - - - - - 18030 18,030
BEA” Fixed assets - - - - - 44,085 44,085
ERRAFE ReinsLrance assets - - - - - 180,742 180,742
RERE Total assets 22,534,404 5,583,354 9347152 3613242 3703015 2,738,663 48,019,830
ik Liabilties
nftFE Interest payahle - - - - - 195,830 195,830
Rtk REFRR Accounts payable, accrued
Eosf expenses and other liabiliies 4214211 - - - - 398,019 4,612,260
SEERFERRENMGE  Labilties directly associated with
assets held for sale - - - - - 34 34
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 785,458 785,458
LERIA G Current income tax iabilties - - - - - 104,665 144,665
BERAR R Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 57,156 57,156
RREAR Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1294712 1294712
BRTfREIR Debt securities issued 4910174 9,766,814 4,301,547 9,349,443 2,521,207 - 31,355,185
ARER Total liabilties 9124415 9,766,814 4,301,547 9,349,443 252107 2,376,224 38,445,650
HegRERD S+ Total interest sensitivity gap* 13,409,989 4,183460) 5,045,605 (5,736,201 1,175,808
HEfT4ETA Interest rate derivatives (notional
(Feaina i) amounts of net position) (627503 (10982823) 4732875 9019265 2286,5%
* RIFTAPTELRTASEEEXN & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

BAITHRSIESF M © on the debt securities issued.
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AR Over
Upto  Tmonthto 1yearto Over  Nondnterest 84
1month 3months 5Years 5 years bearing Total
YN AT Tin T Thn
The Company HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
F-F-=E+-B=t-H Asat31December 2013
e Assets
NekREte Cash and short-term funds 3,300,018 1,019,067 7,060,241 - - 376,15 11,755,482
kB R Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 359,404 359,404
fHESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 831,426 831426
RABR AT Loan portfolio, net 13,334,407 3,579,565 9,674 17,093 183 - 16942574
TERA Investment securiies:
—miLE — avallable-for-sale 217,074 571488 124,741 938,602 - 918,550 3,360,455
—BEEIE — held-to-maturity 283205 388,885 1,548,679 2638646 3,701,180 - 8,960,595
HWEAIRS Interests in subsiciaries 5153370 23789 13262 769 - 103,060 529,050
TSR - REREMAS  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets - - - - - 16,808 16,808
BEA” Fixed assets - - - - - 44085 44,085
BREA” ReinsLrance assets - - - - - 181,053 181,053
REEE Total assets 22288074 5,582,794 9,846,597 3,595,110 3703015 2830542 47846132
il Ligbilifies
g Interest payable - - - - - 195,830 195,830
RRHIR - BfFRR Accounts payable, accrued
EtihfR expenses and other liabiliies 421424 - - - - 398,487 4612728
fHESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 785,458 785,458
el Current income tax fiabilties - - - - - 144,665 104,665
BERAA R Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 5911 5911
RIS Insurance liabities - - - - - 1,297,034 1,297,034
BAfTRSIES DeDt Securities issued 490,174 9,766,814 4,801,547 9,349,443 2,521,207 - 31,355,185
ARER Total liabilities 9124415 9,766,814 4,801,547 9349443 2,521,007 2,878,385 38,447,811
HESRERD 2 5* Total interest Sensitivity gap* 13,163,659 (4,184,020) 5,045,050 (5,754,333) 1,175,808
FZfAETA Interest rate derivatives (notional
(Bosmnaen) amounts of net position) (5627543 (10982823) 4732875 9,019,265 2,286,526
* RITASTESRITASEEEX & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

BAITRSIEFRIZZM © on the debt securities issued.
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3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

@)

Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
and cross currency swaps that will be settled on gross
basis.
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0]

FTETARINE R (i)

MW
Up to
1 month
KEARAAR Ti#x
The Group and the Company HK$'000
F-E-mE As at 31 December 2014
+-A=t-R
il Liabilities
BRIEEILE Debt securities issued (2,331,361)

Non-derivative cash outflows

—MNAGE
E=1MA

Over

=AMRNRE
£
Over

3 months
to 1year
TR
HK$'000

—ENE
BRE
Over
1yearto
5 years
Thn
HK$'000

RERLE
Over -7}
5 years Total
TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

1 month to
3 months
THET
HK$'000

(3,306,552) (10,913,624) (14,974,608) (3,113,780) (34,639,925)

AR

Upto

1 month

N T

The Group and the Company HK$'000
F-%-=% As at 31 December 2013

+-A=t+-H
fif Liabilities
BRIREIIE Debt securities issued (1,617,632)

—FNE

ESig3

QOver QOver
1 month to 1yearto ok
3months 5 years Total
THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000

0 1year
T TATL
HK$'000

(2412076) (10,961,199 (15330,240)  (2652473) (32973620
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(i) TTEIEIASHRA R (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
)
-MARE  EABLE —ENE
Z=/MA B-F BhE
1| Over Over Over BELE
Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over Jax |
1month  3months  to1year 5 years 5years Total
FRAREAAR TR TET TR FRx TR TR
The Group and the Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-g-m& As at 31 December 2014
+ZB=t-H
BTRIIREEEN Derivative financial
fTESHMIA: instrument settled:
— PR — on net basis 488 (638) 8,833 (10,453) (1,522) (3.292)
—BPEE — 0N gr0ss basis
X Total outflow (1,862,366)  (3,690,577)  (6,976,967)  (6,705,515) (873,342) (20,108,767)
MARE Total inflow 1,779,930 3,523,050 6,896,736 5,722,179 878,131 18,800,026
(81,948) (168,165) (71,398) (993,789) 3,267 (1,312,033)
—FE
g3
—MNAR Qver RENE
Upto  1Tmonthto 3months 1year to QOver BEl
1 month 3months to 1year 5 years 5 years Total
i NS BT Tibr THAL THL BT BT
The Group and the Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-5—=% As at 31 December 2013
+=A=1+-H
ETHEREEN Derivative financial
fTESRMTIA: instrument settled:
—ANEE — onnet basis 913 (1,922) 4,957 (13,055) (10,507) (19.614)
—BHER —0n gross basis
i B Total outflow (2213529)  (1,563473)  (8,198,304)  (6,787,875) (87,128) (18,850,309
MABHR Total inflow 2,255,321 1,588,850 8,359,600 6,240,851 105,417 18,550,045
82711 23,455 166,253 (560,079) 7,782 (319,878)
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(b) ZFHBDHT (b)  Maturity analysis

TEREREERARESHEH The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
AFIAB RIS K 2R =R KT relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
BT © period at the end of the reporting period to the

contractual maturity date.

—MIRE EAARE -FME
Z=1B E-F Z1f
WHES -1MAR Over Over Over HENE

Repayable Upto 1monthto 3months 1yearto Over FRE BE

ondemand  1month 3 months to1year 5years 5years  Undated Total

K&H TER TER TER TER TER TER TERT TERT
The Group HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

F-2-mE+-A=+-R Asat31December2014

&= Assets

NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 523,620 9,114,840 7,239,428 1,543,602 - - - 18,421,490

RHEA Loan portfolio 3202 800,455 216,664 1,871,200 3,965,593 8,713,561 2,708 15,573,383

EHRR Investment securities

— e — available-for-sale - 998,080 - 1,669,663 2,082,330 - 984,089 5,734,162

—RHBEIH — held-to-maturity - 11,225 17,458 929,462 4,620,910 3,589,740 - 9,168,795

BRRA Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 44179 144179
526,822 10,924,600 7,473,550 6,013,927 10,668,833 12,303,301 1,130,976 49,042,009

il Liabilities

RIS R Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,112,089 1,112,089

BAIREER Debt securities issued - 2,303,861 3,200,296 10,538,022 14,178,022 3,049,928 - 33,270,129

- 2303861 3200296 10,538,022 14,178,022 3,049,928 1,112,089 34,382,218

-MARE EAAME -EHE
E=/MB 2-F BRE
WEZE MR Over Over Over EHEHNE

Repayable Upto 1monthto 3months  1yearto over TR B

ondemand  1month 3 months to1year 5 years 5years  Undated Total

ARF TER TER TER TER TER TER THRL ThRL
The Company HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

F-2-mE+-A=+-R Asat31December 2014

B Assets

NeRESHRE Cash and short-term funds 522,156 9,114,840 7,239,428 1,543,602 - - - 18,420,026

AR Loan portfolio 2,875 782,818 180,526 1,708,308 3,078,604 5,278,821 1,994 11,033,946

EHRA Investment securities

—WfiHE — available-for-sale - 998,080 - 1,669,663 2,082,330 - 984,089 5734162

—RHEHE — held-to-maturity - 11,225 17,458 929,462 4,620,910 3,589,740 - 9,168,795

BREA Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 144,399 144,399
525,031 10,906,963 7,437,412 5,851,035 9,781,844 8,868,561 1,130,482 44,501,328

il Liabilities

R R Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,113,683 1,113,683

BAARSIES Debt securities issued - 2,303,861 3,200,296 10,538,022 14,178,022 3,049,928 - 33,270,129

- 2303861 3,200,296 10,538,022 14,178,022 3,049,928 1,113,683 34,383,812
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i

Repayable

on demand

pin THn
The Group HK$'000

F-E-=5+-A=F-0 Asat31December 2013

—MNAR
Upto

1 month
TR
HKS'000

1 month to
3months

HKS'000

3months
10 1year

1year o
5Yyears

HK$'000

RENE
Over
5years

HK$'000

TR
Undated
Tin
HK$'000

E
HK$'000

R’ Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 375571 3302654 1019067 7,060241 - - - 11,757,533
AL Loan portfolio 4892 383,165 805824 3655439 6619437 10,798,613 2852 22210222
FHRR Investment securities
—AHHE — available-for-sale = 217,074 441,488 1214741 1,068,602 - 918550 3,360,455
—HBEHE — held-to-maturity - 283,205 127968 1564173 2884069 3,701,180 - 856059
BRER" Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 180,742 180,742
380463 4,186,098 2,394,347 13494594 10,572,108 14,499,793 1,102,144 46,629,547
il Liabilities
IR Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 194712 194712
BRIRSILH Debt securities issted - 1584192 2267698 1057655 14399532 2,527,207 - 31,355,185
- 1584192 2267698 10576556 14399532 252,207 1294712 32,649,897

g

Repayable
on demand

7l
The Company

F-E-=%+-F=+-8 Asat31December 2013

—MAR
Upto
1 month

1month to
3months
A
HKS'000

—ENE
i
Over
1yearto
5 years

AELNE
Over
5years

TR
Undated

R Assets
N REHRE Cash and short-term funds 373520 3302654 1019067 7,060,241 = = - 11,755,482
RaAA Loan portfolio 4,648 363,771 766,083 3476151 5633284 6,697,735 2191 16943369
AR Investment securities
— e — available-for-sale = 217,074 4488 1,214,741 1,068,602 = 918,550 3,860,455
—EHEH — held-to-maturity - 283205 127,968 1564173 2884069 3701180 - 8560595
BRI Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 181,053 181,053
378168 4166710 2,354,606 13315306 9585955 10,398915 1,101,794 41,301,454
il Liabilities
RIS 5 Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1297034 1,297,034
BA{TfRSIES Debt securities issued - 1584192 2267698 1057655 14399532 2,527,207 - 31,355,185
- 1584192 2267698 10,576,556 14,399,532 2527207 1,297,034 32,652,219
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current income tax liabilities are expected to be
recovered or settled within twelve months from the
reporting date. Other assets and liabilities included
in the statement of financial position are expected to
be recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$30 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, which
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

The main insurance business of the Group is the mortgage
insurance which provides cover to the Als for first credit
losses of up to 25%—30% of the property value of a residential
mortgage loan in Hong Kong with loan-to-value ratio below
90% at origination, or other thresholds as specified from time
to time. The Group also provides financial guarantee cover to
Als up to 50%-70% of the banking facilities granted to SMES
and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong and insurance cover
to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans originated by
such Als and secured on residential properties.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.
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For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance of
the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims. Low
mortality rate of borrowers means longer payout period
and larger loan balance will be over time. This will affect
the frequency and severity of claims as there is a risk of the
property value insufficient to cover the outstanding loan
balance in the future.
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The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance underwriting eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient
provision is set aside for meeting future claim payments,
the Group calculates technical reserves on prudent liability
valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share
reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers and
excess-of-loss reinsurance arrangement in an effort to limit
its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance business.
The Group conducts comprehensive assessment including
the financial strength and credit ratings of the mortgage
reinsurers in accordance with the approved selection
framework set by the Credit Committee. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews. For
financial guarantee cover provided to Als, the Group relies
on the lenders’ prudent credit assessment on the borrowers
to mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan facility will be
shared proportionately between the Group and the lender on
a pari passu basis to minimise moral hazards. The mortality
assumptions of reverse mortgages are also reviewed on a
regular basis, to assess the risk of larger deviation between
the actual and expected operating results.

As at 31 December 2014, if combined ratio had increased by
1%, profit for the year would have been HK$4 million (2013:
HK$4 million) lower. If combined ratio had decreased by 1%,
profit for the year would have been HK$4 million (2013: HK$4
million) higher.
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@) Fair value estimation

The following table shows financial instruments
recognised at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels of fair value hierarchy have been
defined as follows:

. Quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (“Level 17);

o Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
from prices) (“Level 2"); and

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
(“Level 3").

FRARKAR REARAAT
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company

Fo2-mE+=A=1-H —F-=£+-A=t+-H
As at 31 December 2014 As at 31 December 2013

£-R F=R fok F-F £°R

Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
TER TiEL TER T B THT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

R’ Assets
fTESHIE Derivative financial instruments - 556,962 556,962 - 831,426 831,426
SIS Available-for-sale securities
—R&iEH — Debt securities 3023999 1,726,074 4,750,073 1,228,043 1,713,862 2,941,905
—Efpil% — Other securities 984,089 - 984,089 918,550 - 918,550
4,008,088 2,283,036 6,291,124 2,146,593 2,545,288 4,691,831
A& Liabilities
fTAESBIA Derivative financial instruments - 1575968 1,575,968 - 785,458 785,458

TR RE R Debt securities issed
UAFEZLITA designated as at fair value
REMNERTHES through profit or 10ss upon
% initial recognition

- 336,201 336,201 325,002 325,002

- 1912169 1,912,169

1,110,460 1,110,460
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No financial instrument was measured at fair value
using a valuation technigue not supported by
observable market data (Level 3) as at 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013.

There was no transfer between Levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

(i)

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps
and currency swaps. These derivatives are fair
valued using forward interest rates and forward
exchange rates, if applicable, from observable
yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.
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EE
Carrying
amount
T#n
HK$'000

Financial assets
Investment securities
— held-to-maturity 9,168,795

Financial liabilities
Debt securities issued 32,933,928

(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
financial position at their fair values are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013 except for the following
financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
disclosed below:

KERARALT ig
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company

Fo8-METZA=1-A F—=E+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2014 As at 31 December 2013
i
AV F-F 2R Carrying NEE £-F 2R
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 amount Fair value Level1 Level2
Tén Thn TEn T T ThT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

9,444,285 7,348,169 2,096,116 8,560,995 8,699,613 5,660,486 3039127

32,936,482 - 32,936,482 31,030,183 31,030,855 = 31,030,855
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(i)

(iii)

The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial

instruments:
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Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits.
The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
3 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities — held-to-maturity

Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on
market prices or broker/dealer price quotations.
Where this information is not available, fair value
has been estimated using quoted market prices
for securities with similar credit, maturity and
yield characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based
on quoted market prices. For those notes
where quoted market prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining
term to maturity.
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3.7.

(v)  Other liabilities — deferred consideration

These represent the deferred consideration
used for credit enhancement on the mortgage
loans purchased from the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
Government) in December 2003 and January
2004 with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (the Financial
Secretary),

o To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders;

o To support the Group's stability and growth;,

o To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the

shareholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.
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Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the Group’s management in accordance
with the Guidelines on the Capital Adequacy Ratio (the
Guidelines) issued by the Financial Secretary, by reference
largely to Basel Il risk-based capital adequacy framework.
The minimum Capital Adeguacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the
Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to
the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to
the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. Any breach
or likely breach of the Guidelines must be reported to the
Financial Secretary. During the year, the Group complied
with all of the capital requirement set out in the Guidelines
by the Financial Secretary.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period.

2014 2013

THET FETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

ik Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000

IRE8 V4 7l Retained profits 4,720,815 4,548,760

XS 1E Contingency reserve 1,437,745 1,213,827

HiER Other reserves 208,489 169,775

5 15 A AR B Non-controlling interests - 12,972
LARE 22T BT HORE Allowance for loan impairment under

FrtE2 4 & collective assessment 1,734 1,825

kR Deductions (36,118) (46,560)

BAER B AR Total capital base 8,332,665 7,900,599

RN B R Capital Adequacy Ratio 23.5% 21%
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3.8 ERAFTRERGGRZIE 3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

TREES REREF RN S KR T The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
FHEEXNENSI RSN financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
R BZERFMART 2MEEL the Group’s statement of financial position but are subject
HEgOm 2= 25 0L & B T B &9ARE th il A to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar
MR- FEAPN MM EIME T agreements that cover similar financial instruments. The
iR IARORRAR I 5 DT XU B BT 0 disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross and
TRt o net amounts, as well as provide additional information on

how such credit risk is mitigated.

RERARAAF
The Group and the Company
F-8-mE+ZA=1-A F-F-ZFt-A=t-R
As at 31 December 2014 As at 31 December 2013
BXBARERSRAR
bkl )
Related amount Related amount
not set off not set off
in the statement inthe statement
HERERN of financial : of financial
M{E position® postion*
caming —M —_—
amounts Bl amounts
onthe fiAERIR HeKHR onthe b !
statementof  Derivative Cash A statement of Derivative i
financial financial collateral Net financial financial Net
position  instruments received amount’ position instruments amount’
THT T TH7T T ThT ThL T
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRR Financial assets
N ESBTANTE Positive fair valles for derivative
financial instruments 556,962 (348,281) (20,750) 187,931 831,426 (175,080) 656,346
SRR Financial liabilities
ARNTESBTANTE Negative fair values for derivative
financial instruments 1,575,968 (348,281) - 1,227,687 785,458 (175,080) 610378

g [BAREHREMSRKRETHEHNE & Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the statement of
R p I EE R HE SR AL E financial position” represent the amounts of financial liabilities/assets
FEEREXHHHEMARN SN position that are subject to netting arrangements or similar agreements
R/ RS - including CSA.

& BEE R B A E L H SR LT & Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject
NROSEAF A BiREARSE to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group’s
ARSI FEL - EHEEREN counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
SRR A SAEE (R4S o position with the Group to offset upon default.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

41.

4.2,

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment
on a regular basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identified with an individual
loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable
data indicating that there has been an adverse change in
the payment status of borrowers in a group or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in
the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2014 is disclosed in Note 21.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets are determined by using valuation techniques.
Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used
to determine fair value, they are validated and periodically
reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the area
that created them. All models are validated before they
are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the
extent practical, models use only observable data. Sensitivity
analysis is set out in Note 3.3.

The carrying amount of derivative financial instruments as at
31 December 2014 is disclosed in Note 20.
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4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination
of what is significant or prolonged requires judgement. In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the normal volatility in listed price. In addition,
impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence
of deterioration in the financial health of the investment,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology,
and operational and financing cash flows.

The carrying amount of available-for-sale investments as at
31 December 2014 is disclosed in Note 22(a).

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances defined in HKAS 39 such as due to significant
deterioration of such investments or selling close to maturity,
it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-
for-sale and measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

The carrying amount of held-to-maturity investments as at
31 December 2014 is disclosed in Note 22(b).

Profits tax

The Group is mainly subject to profits tax in Hong Kong.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for profits tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
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Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other
activities such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase
and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from mortgage
receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage business. The Group
is also organised in such a way that performance is measured at
Group level in a single segment for mortgage business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment,
the mortgage business is located in two geographical areas,
namely Hong Kong and Korea. The segment for Hong Kong
includes mainly the mortgage business in Hong Kong. The segment
outside Hong Kong includes mortgage assets in Korea. The chief
operating decision maker assesses the performance based on
geographical segments.

The following tables represent revenue, profit and other
information for operating segments of the Group.

FE L
EHB Outside HE

Hong Kong
FTER
HK$’000

Hong Kong Total
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$°000

BE-—ZF—NF Year ended 31 December 2014
+=—BA=+—BLEE

M BIA Interest income 879,468 22,898 902,366
FE X Interest expense (244,304) (7,107) (251,411)
) B A Net interest income 635,164 15,791 650,955
BHHR 5250 Net premiums earned 434,096 - 434,096
E bl A Other income 98,836 (9,491) 89,345
ZEWA Operating income 1,168,096 6,300 1,174,396
FARBRR RN Net claims incurred (10,144) - (10,144)
BeIHEm Net commission expenses (110,809) - (110,809)
KRESTH Operating expenses (252,751) (2,876) (255,627)
RITBERTHEL E T Operating profit before impairment 794,392 3,424 797,816
RRORER & Charge of loan impairment

allowances (906) - (906)
B 750 Bl o ) Profit before taxation 793,486 3,424 796,910
T I3 Taxation (50,937)
R A Profit for the year 745,973
FRERATFX Capital expenditure during the year 15,865 - 15,865
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A= t—ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2013

EPEASI
Outside BER
Hong Kong Total
BT FHBT
HK$°000 HK$'000

)

Hong Kong
FAT
HK$'000

FE A Interest income 840,807 61,439 902,246
FMBEXH Interest expense (230,306) (19,947) (250,253)
B B A Net interest income 610,501 41,492 651,993
B EMR 2R 2N Net premiums earned 476,956 = 476,956
Eablg A Other income 307,707 (10,237) 297,470
ZERA Operating income 1,395,164 31,255 1,426,419
RRE K 2 Net claims written back 8,767 = 8,767
i guepe X Net commission expenses (135,890) - (135,890)
ZRENH Operating expenses (227,948) (7,095) (235,043)
RITBERTHEL E & T Operating profit before impairment 1,040,093 24,160 1,064,253
HORER % Write-back of loan impairment

allowances 3,545 = 3,545
BR 7% B a5 A Profit before taxation 1,043,638 24,160 1,067,798
I Taxation (85,214)
N g A Profit for the year 982,584
FRNRATFX Capital expenditure during the year 32,720 - 32,720

=B LS
Ooutside =X i
Hong Kong Total
TET THET
HK$'000 HK$°000

58

Hong Kong
FTHER
HK$'000

F-E-—MmF As at 31 December 2014

+=-A=+-—H
DERRE Segment assets 49,305,023 698,398 50,003,421
DEMGR Segment liabilities 40,413,009 698,398 41,111,407

EPEASI
Outside BAR
Hong Kong Total
FHBT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

w5

Hong Kong
FAT
HK$'000

F_E—=4F As at 31 December 2013

+=Z—A=+—8H
DEE T Segment assets 45,624,944 2,394,886 48,019,830
DERMER Segment liabilities 36,180,487 2,265,163 38,445,650

EERBITISEARAT —=—mEFE 189



SEMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FEUWAN 6. Interestincome
REH
The Group

2014 2013
FE&T T 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
WS Loan portfolio 329,292 428,498
NekEHRe Cash and short-term funds 230,482 139,153
EHFE — Em Investment securities — listed 199,422 206,139
AR —FFEm Investment securities — unlisted 143,170 128,456
902,366 902,246

7. FEZH 7. Interest expense

KEH
The Group

2014 2013
TR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

MTRERNBHELHIRITIIE - Bank loans, debt securities and MBS

B AITHRS ISR RIRBiE 5 issued wholly repayable within 5 years 236,742 238,945
BT HEFERNRNEEME 577 Debt securities issued and other not
LSS5 R E A wholly repayable within 5 years 14,669 11,308
251,411 250,253
NEEFBZHBIE25ZBT(ZE—= Included within interest expenses are HK$250 million (2013:
F 2491278 70) FHAEA RN FEZAIT AR HK$249 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value
)BT © through profit or 10ss.
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RIBREFZIBHRWZHY S 8. Revenue account for mortgage insurance and

guarantee business

AR
The Group

2014 2013
FET FTAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

ER T (M (@) FFE 28(a))

Gross premiums written

(Note (a) and Note 28(a)) 320,789 318,053
BRK R TR ()£ 28(a)) Reinsurance premiums (Note 28(a)) (39,023) (43,414)
IRE& #5340 (Ff)E 28(a)) Net premiums written (Note 28(a)) 281,766 274,639
A% BAR 28 H Rk D AT Decrease in unearned premiums, net 152,330 202,317
BB HR 22240 (F1E 28(a)) Net premiums earned (Note 28(a)) 434,096 476,956
BR(ZE) /B e Net claims (incurred)/written back
(FH5E 28(0)) (Note 28(b)) (10,144) 8,767
K REEHBRE 0 Net premiums earned after provisions 423,952 485,723
BeEH commission expenses (128,934) (154,125)
BREARNESSE Reinsurers’ share of commission expenses 18,125 18,235
BeI 2 Net commission expenses (110,809) (135,890)
R BRI RIHE 7 Ef Net premiums earned before
R 2N management expenses 313,143 349,833
B (KE b)) Management expenses (Note (b)) (57,465) (47,040)
AR Mz Underwriting gains 255,678 302,793
B - Notes:
(@) ERBEEREBRBERRALS - NEHERE (@  Gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage insurance cover on
AN RIE ET R TTREIBRE R T EIR mortgage loans with a small portion of guarantee fees written from guarantee
BRREE o business on loans to SMEs and non-listed enterprises and premiums written

) EEFXAMII0LEHH—BD

from mortgage insurance cover on reverse mortgage loans.

(b) Management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 10.
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192

HbKA 9. Otherincome
REH
The Group
2014 2013
F#&T T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
IRE R A MO HATI R Early prepayment fees and late charges 1,233 2,362
LR ZEE Exchange difference (12,575) 72,320
SRITARNFERD 2 Net change in fair value of financial
instruments (3,541) (384)
A E ETRR AR S Dividend income from available-for-sale
listed investments 34,512 89,077
e R 2 (FHE12) Net gains on disposal of investments
(Note 12) 58,632 135,737
HERDENEFERTH Gain on disposal of a subsidiary classified
MofE 2 mikas (£ 19) as assets held for sale (Note 19) 12,991 =
HAth Others (1,907) (1,642)
89,345 297,470

CHITEAERNFEEDESETUATSIMELE
M:OEBENAFENHONFTAAF
ESHR1056ZBT(ZFE—=4:11.88/Z
FETT) AT I B A FE U 10.6012 7
TT(ZEB—=4F: M97ZBT) + R()THF
AXAXNALUTFENTETAEAFET
$1,000 FBT(ZF—=4 : 3,700 58 7T)
RIEEANFEZAITARBZHE X1TH
FIFH N EWKZE200FBT(ZE—=4F:
2,800 38 7T) °

Change in fair value of financial instruments represented the
aggregate of (i) HK$1,056 million fair value loss on hedging
instruments designated as fair value hedge (2013: HK$1,188
million) and HK$1,060 million fair value gain on the hedged items
(2013: HK$1,197 million); and (ii) HK$10 million fair value loss on
derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2013:
HK$37 million) and HK$2 million fair value gain on debt securities
issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2013:
HK$28 million).
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10. Operating expenses

8 RRA

¥ M

BARERAR —

SFUEHARIT )

JI/NES

Giika

Hit
EFME
718 (£ 25)
W& R RIRSS
o5t =) %
HiZEXH

REH
The Group
2014 2013
FH&xT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Staff costs
Salaries and benefits 148,618 135,476
Pension costs — defined contribution
plans 8,689 8,255
Premises
Rental 30,497 25,183
Others 8,803 13,472
Directors’ emoluments - -
Depreciation (Note 25) 24,841 17,763
Financial information services 5,726 6,029
Consultancy fees 6,749 8,575
Other operating expenses 21,704 20,290

255,627 235,043

1. ZEHENE

11. Auditor’s remuneration

REH
The Group

2014
TR

TZRS
HA RS

HK$'000

Audit services 1,378 1,404
Other services 308 1,132

1,686 2,536

EHERBISARAT —=—maEFif 193



SEMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. HERFTHW R FER

12. Net gains on disposal of investments

AEHA
The Group

2014 2013
TR TAT

HERRA WK FH -
—ZRT-A—HETHEA

HK$'000 HK$'000

Net gains on disposal of investments:
— realisation of amounts recognised in

B IABOFR I (FF5E31) reserves up to 1 January (Note 31) 63,023 295,593
— AFE A THE — net losses arising in current year (4,391) (159,856)
58,632 135,737

13. GERURIE (3 &), E#&

13. (Charge)/write-back of loan impairment
allowances

&M
The Group

2014 2013
TERT THAT

TRORE (3R F) /B
— A& 1A (KT 21(0)

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Charge)/write-back of loan impairment
allowances — collective assessment
(Note 21(b)) (906) 3,545
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14. Filn

(a)

FHREWRRABRBBIS

BAEMEH

14. Taxation

(a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income
statement represents:

AEH
The Group
2013
T
HK$'000

2014
FERT
HK$'000

Hong Kong profits tax

— HHITEH — Current income tax 60,987 82,715

— UAFERE — Adjustment in respect of prior years (10,389) (1)
50,598 82,704

BB AINR I Taxation outside Hong Kong

— HHMEH — Current income tax 1,263 554

12 E R IR Deferred taxation

— REEGRE), T — (Credit)/charge for current year (924) 1,956
50,937 85,214

B A A T RIR B R R IR
16.5% (= F — =4 : 16.5%) W R
THERBHEHELE - W TEEEN
IRERMBAR  SEMEERE
WEAFRITE o B EFHTUA SR
EH165%(—ZF — = F : 16.5%) HY
FTERRITE LB ZH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. For subsidiary operating outside Hong Kong, tax
rate prevailing in the relevant country was used. Deferred
taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%).
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SEMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARERHBRHIDEN RIS R AR
BREITENBICSTOERON

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

IREEH
The Group
2014 2013
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B 750 BT 45 ) Profit before taxation 796,910 1,067,798
1216.5% (ZZF—=4 : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
KRR E (2013: 16.5%) 131,490 176,187
G Tax effect of:
— BE N R FR R — different tax rate outside Hong Kong (880) 166
— BT RN — income not subject to taxation (90,015) (105,608)
— NATHIR A I 2 — expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 20,731 14,480
— UAFERE — adjustment in respect of prior years (10,389) (11)
I 2 Taxation charge 50,937 85,214
(b) MBFRARAMBINEEA : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial

position represents:

&R
The Group

2014
FERT
HK$'000

2013
THET

HK$'000

KAT

The Company

2014
TR
HK$'000

2013
TAT
HK$'000

LEBIMA - (B Current income tax assets
FIrEMEZIN) (included in “Other assets”) - 1,222 - =
LR IR Current income tax liabilities 133,301 144,665 133,099 144,665
IR I 1R Deferred income tax liabilities 76,298 57,156 76,098 56,911
209,599 201,821 209,197 201,576

F=E2-—mMFE+=-A=+—HE=F
—ZH+ZA=1+—H8 #BEEAE
RARIK B TEFIIN

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.
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BIERE I (R =),/ s £ B 4B EB The major components of deferred income tax (assets)/

DRERNBHIAT liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:
REMH
The Group
HERE
MEBTFTE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances ALETE P& RH
tax and Fair value Cash flow B
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
TH BT T AL T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E-=%-H-H Asat 1 January 2013 5,065 (6,410) 112,459 (1,710) 109,404
FlaRmint Charged to the income statement 403 1,553 - - 1,956
THRER(FEA)/fk  (Credited)/charged to equity
(H£31) (Note 31) - = (54,908) 704 (54,204)
F-F-=% As at 31 December 2013
+-A=t-H 5468 (4,857) 57,551 (1,006) 57,156
TWRZR (FA),/#1B  (Credited)/charged to the
income statement (1,961) 1,037 - - (924)
FiRaEmAs (F7E31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - 19,595 4 20,066
F-E-Rmf As at 31 December 2014
+=A=1+-H 3,507 (3,820) 77,146 (535) 76,298
PN
The Company
HERE
MEHBTE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances DAYEE &R
tax and Fair value Cash flow B
depreciation provisions changes hedges
THI THL AL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-5—=%-f-H As at 1 January 2013 5,065 (6,711) 112,459 (1,710 109,103
TFHERRMEG Charged to the income statement 403 1,609 - - 2012
FoEM(EA)/#B  (Credited)/charged to equity
(KE31) (Note 31) - = (54,908) 704 (54,204)
FT-%-=% As at 31 December 2013
+=A=1-8 5,468 (5,102 57,551 (1,006) 56,911
FUEEM(FA)/ M (Credited)/charged to the
income statement (1,961) 1,082 - - (879)
THEERINGR (M5331)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - 19,595 4 20,066
FT-&-m& As at 31 December 2014
+=A=1+-H 3,507 (4,020) 77,146 (535) 76,098
TH=MAN > TEAEXREEHR] There is no significant amount of deferred income tax assets/
B R ERE A e liabilities to be settled within 12 months.
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15. REEHF
RRBMSMRRAMBAFE &GN N
722,388,000/ 7E.( = F — =4 : 956,250,000
BT e

16. BB

UK BB S B AR E AR
0175 BT (ZE—=4 :

15. Profit for the year
The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company to the extent of HK$722,388,000 (2013:
HK$956,250,000).

16. Dividends

NN
The Company

2014
TR
HK$'000

2013
TAT
HK$'000

Proposed ordinary dividend of HK$0.175
(2013: HK$0.25) per ordinary share

0.257%7T) 350,000 500,000

PR - —=F47I% 8 Proposed special dividend of HK$0.5 per
BREER0S5ABTT ordinary share in respect of 2013 - 1,000,000
350,000 1,500,000

T2 HEFM=_FE—=FE2FH=F
—=FM=F——FEREDHINI5ZE
JC (A% B A T AR 0.25 A T AN B AR
BERE®ER05BT) 7528 (F&
L@mAR0375% ) T2 E—HFWMA
—t+—HB EFREWRA-_ZT—NFLE
B SR @AR0.1758 T - EEKBRE
FE - BURRR B H ST A RARE -

17. & REHHES

The dividends paid in 2014 and 2013 in respect of 2013 and 2012
were HK$1,500 million (ordinary dividend of HK$0.25 per ordinary
share and special dividend of HK$0.5 per ordinary share) and
HK$750 million (HK$0.375 per ordinary share) respectively. The
directors proposed, in respect of 2014, an ordinary dividend of
HK$0.175 per ordinary share on 21 April 2015. The proposed
dividend is not reflected as dividend payable until approval by
shareholders.

17. Cash and short-term funds

REH RAF

The Grou